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          1  COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND ETHICS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: This is Inez

          3  Dickens and I have the honor of Chairing this

          4  Committee. My colleagues who are here in attendance

          5  are Council Member Dan Garodnick and Council Member

          6  Lanza.  Thank you for coming.

          7                 We are here today to hear testimony

          8  on Intro. No. 165, a Local Law to amend the

          9  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         10  relation to the annual disclosure of financial

         11  interests by certain officers and employees of or

         12  affiliated with the City of New York.

         13                 And I also want to take the time to

         14  introduce Karen Meara, Director of City Legislative

         15  Affairs for the City of New York.  I just wanted to

         16  introduce you.

         17                 Intro. No. 165 would amend

         18  Administrative Code 12 110. That section deals

         19  exclusively with whom must file annual disclosure of

         20  financial interests and describes the extent of

         21  those disclosures.

         22                 The Conflicts of Interest Board is

         23  the Agency charged with enforcing the City Financial

         24  Law and reviewing the filed financial reports.  As

         25  such, they are the Agency most directly impacted by
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          2  this bill, I know that you are very happy about

          3  that, and their testimony regarding the reasons why

          4  they believe the City's Financial Disclosure Law

          5  need to be amended and what the effect of these

          6  proposed amendments would be.  It would be most

          7  helpful to the Committee evaluating this bill.

          8                 I want to also introduce my Counsel,

          9  Jeff Baker, who will see to it that I ask the

         10  appropriate questions.  Karen Meara, please, and

         11  state your name and title. Thank you.

         12                 MS. MEARA: Thank you very much

         13  Chairwoman Dickens, Members of the Committee.  My

         14  name is Karen Meara and I am the Director of City

         15  Legislative Affairs.  I am here to express the

         16  Administration's support for Intro. No. 165 and I

         17  want to thank you for the opportunity to testify

         18  today.

         19                 So, as you all know, as the

         20  Chairwoman said, the City Financial Disclosure Law

         21  requires elected officials and any City employees to

         22  disclose information about their finances to the

         23  Conflicts of Interest Board on an annual basis.  And

         24  Intro 165 would amend the City's law to accomplish

         25  three things: It would conform the law with State
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          2  Law, it would codify current practices of the Board,

          3  and it would make technical corrections to the

          4  existing law.

          5                 The State Law requires that the

          6  City's Financial Disclosure Law is at least as

          7  stringent as the State's law.  So as a consequence,

          8  whenever the State passes legislation that includes

          9  additional or more stringent disclosure

         10  requirements, the City has to conform its law to

         11  such changes.  Recent changes in State law requires

         12  that we expand the list of required filers.

         13                 For example, Intro. 165 expands the

         14  definition of "City employee" to reflect amendments

         15  made to the State Private Housing Finance Law, which

         16  placed the Housing Development Corporation under the

         17  jurisdiction of Conflict of Interest Board (COIB)

         18  and provides that the Housing Development

         19  Corporation (HDC) Board members are subject to

         20  financial disclosure.

         21                 Intro. 165 also ensures that present

         22  and future amendments to State law, such as the

         23  changes required by the State Public Authorities

         24  Accountability Act of 2005, are incorporated into

         25  law by adding a "catch- all" provision to require
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          2  that any person required by State law to file

          3  financial disclosure reports must also file with the

          4  COIB.  By including this catch- all phrase, the will

          5  not have to be revised when the State adds another

          6  category of filers, in the future. If a new category

          7  is added, the catch- all phrase serves as notice

          8  that financial disclosure reports are required.

          9                 One of the amendments that would

         10  conform the law to current COIB practices, is a

         11  provision that clarifies the categories of City

         12  employees required to file financial disclosure

         13  forms to include the Mayor's Office.  The Mayor's

         14  Office is an example but there are certain

         15  categories that are not explicitly required to file

         16  right now.  Under current law it is possible that

         17  managers in agencies that do not assign  "M- Levels"

         18  aren't designated as required filers, even though

         19  their responsibilities include the independent

         20  exercise of managerial or policy making functions.

         21  Although the Mayor's Office currently requires such

         22  managers to file financial disclosure reports, the

         23  proposed amendment codifies that that's what we do.

         24                 Intro. 165 makes some important

         25  technical corrections to the existing law, such as
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          2  amending the definition of "reimbursements".  Right

          3  now the definition of reimbursements, makes it seem

          4  a reimbursement for payment by a non- governmental

          5  entity for a public servant's travel expenses, right

          6  now the current law makes it seem that that's a gift

          7  and obviously that is a reimbursement not a gift and

          8  so there is an amendment in 165 that corrects that

          9  inaccuracy.

         10                 Financial disclosure reports are

         11  subject to public disclosure, as you well know.

         12  Filers may, however, request that COIB withhold

         13  certain information from public inspection for

         14  personal and safety reasons.  And Intro. 165 sets

         15  forth some provisions by which COIB can weigh the

         16  privacy rights of the filers with the public's right

         17  to information.  For example, Intro. 165 provides a

         18  formal mechanism for notifying filers who requested

         19  the withholding of information, and sets forth

         20  procedures for notifying filers of COIB's

         21  determination, and also for filing an appeal of that

         22  determination.  It also authorized COIB to withhold

         23  information in the report, with or without a request

         24  from the filer, where COIB determines that the

         25  release of the information would constitute a risk
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          2  to the security and safety of any persons. It

          3  restores the provision codifying COIB's current

          4  practice of notifying filers when a report is

          5  requested by a member of the public; and it affirms

          6  that original financial disclosure reports are

          7  subject to the same privacy restrictions as amended

          8  reports. Finally, Intro. 165 also expressly

          9  authorizes full disclosure of reports, in their

         10  entirety, to law enforcement agencies without

         11  notification to the filer, which is current

         12  practice.

         13                 Indeed, the changes made by Local Law

         14  43, by the Council in 2003, represented significant

         15  improvements in the City's law requiring its

         16  employees to report on certain financial holdings.

         17  Intro. No. 165 contains numerous technical

         18  amendments that will clarify the major changes

         19  enacted in '03, thus allowing the Conflicts of

         20  Interest Board to enhance its administration of the

         21  law.

         22                 Intro. 165 will also conform the

         23  City's law to changes in State law, ensuring that

         24  the COIB has the power to require filers to comply

         25  with these changes.  These changes will improve the
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          2  City's already comprehensive Financial Disclosure

          3  Laws. For all these reasons, the Administration

          4  fully supports Intro. 165 and respectfully requests

          5  the Council's support for this legislation.  I thank

          6  you for your time, and I would be happy to answer

          7  any questions you may have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thank you so

          9  much Ms. Meara, for your testimony.  Before I turn

         10  it to my colleagues I just want to ask something.

         11  It seems after having read this and listening to my

         12  attorney here, that we are already very much in

         13  compliance.  Our law presently is very closely or as

         14  in some instances as quoted in State law.  And these

         15  are some minor technical changes that are being

         16  added by Intro. 165?

         17                 MS. MEARA: Correct. It's truly to

         18  clarify the existing law and also conform with the

         19  State law.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: All right.

         21  Thank you so much.

         22                 I want to introduce, that we are

         23  pleased that we have been joined by Council Member

         24  Vacca.  Thank you so much.

         25                 Council Member Dan Garodnick.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

          3  very much, Madam Chair.  Just a few questions,

          4  because it seems like this is mostly just to clean-

          5  up the law to bring us in line with what the State

          6  requires already.  What were the recent changes in

          7  the State law that required that we change.

          8                 MS. MEARA: Well, I mentioned one of

          9  them in my testimony, which is now HDC Board Members

         10  are required to file.  I believe the COIB is going

         11  to elaborate on some of those other filers, but I

         12  believe there are other titles that are now required

         13  to file, but I will defer to my colleagues at COIB.

         14  They will be able to elaborate on that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  We

         16  can ask them that question.  In terms of the "catch-

         17  all" provisions, is there anything that we would be

         18  changing by improving Intro. 165 that would not be

         19  included, which would not bring us completely up to

         20  speed, I guess is the question, in terms of anybody

         21  who should be covered by State law and it is the

         22   'catch- all" provision really just to anticipate

         23  anything else coming down- the- line, or are we

         24  leaving anything out at this point?

         25                 MS. MEARA: I don't know the answer to
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          2  that question, but I know COIB does so when they

          3  come up.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  I'll

          5  ask them. I'll ask COIB also the question about how

          6  they weigh the privacy right of the filers and the

          7  circumstances which they would withhold information

          8  for the purposes of security and safety, unless you

          9  wanted to comment.

         10                 MS. MEARA: Actually I know an example

         11  of the safety and security.  The sample is if a

         12  filer listed, when they are listing their assets, if

         13  they actually put an account number on there.

         14  That's not required under financial disclosure.  We

         15  certainly would not want a member of the public to

         16  have your account number.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: The Mayor's

         18  Office presently, we don't have any M- Level, or M-

         19  4, you said that's not something that exists.

         20                 MS. MEARA: The Mayor's Office doesn't

         21  have M- level staff, which means that by virtue of,

         22  or by accident they were left out.  The 2003 law

         23  didn't cover Mayor's Office staff and a number of

         24  other agencies, which I am sure COIB could give

         25  other examples of those.  I think that was
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          2  unintentional, because clearly the Mayor's Office

          3  staff should be disclosed, and we do in fact.  But

          4  this codifies that we are required to disclose.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, so

          6  even though the Mayor's Office does not have M-

          7  Level, 165 would require filing for folks who have

          8  managerial or policy- making influence.

          9                 MS. MEARA: Exactly, and just to be

         10  clear, we already do, the Mayor's Office does

         11  require its staff with policy- making influence to

         12  file.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: It's not

         14  codified in the City's current law.

         15                 MS. MEARA: Exactly. It's not

         16  required.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

         18  Thank you very much.

         19                 MS. MEARA: You're welcome.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Are there any

         21  other questions? Council Member Vacca.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Yes, Ms. Meara.

         23    I too support this legislation.  I think that you

         24  basically summarized it very well.  My only question

         25  is, in the near future, my understanding is we may
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          2  be looking toward having financial disclosure

          3  statements filed on- line?  Is that something that's

          4  coming?

          5                 MS. MEARA: I'll let my colleagues

          6  from COIB speak to that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Okay.

          8                 MS. MEARA: I'm sorry, I just don't

          9  know.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: That's okay.  I

         11  will support my colleagues remarks regarding

         12  clarifying the "M" situation, and I do think that

         13  this is needed, although I think most people who are

         14  in those "M" situations have been filing in the

         15  past.  That's been the policy that's been

         16  transmitted through the Mayor's Office for as long

         17  as I can remember that even if you are not

         18  technically a M- 1 person, that you are encouraged

         19  or told to file.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: We have been

         21  joined by Council Member Gioia, from Brooklyn.  Are

         22  there any other questions from my colleagues? Oh,

         23  sorry, from Queens.  Close enough, it's an outer

         24  borough.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: We're part of
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          2  the same land mass if you really look at it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS:  We have been

          4  joined by Council Member Sears. We apologize for the

          5  lateness, but because we had a very, very important

          6  Executive Budget Briefing today and we had to have

          7  our meeting around it, as I know COIB would be happy

          8  to know, so I apologize for the lateness of my

          9  colleagues.  Questions from my colleagues?  Hearing

         10  none, thank you so much for being here and giving

         11  your testimony.

         12                 MS. MEARA: Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thanks for

         14  giving your testimony.  Good afternoon, Mr. Davies.

         15  COIB please, Conflict of Interest Board.  Ms.

         16  Mennin, are you going to give testimony?

         17                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: All right.

         19                 I am pleased to welcome Felicia

         20  Mennin, the Director of Financial Disclosure and

         21  Litigation Counsel for the Conflicts of Interest

         22  Board.  And of course I also want to recognize the

         23  Director, Mark Davies. Thank you.

         24                 MR. DAVIES: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Please start
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          2  with your name.

          3                 MS. MENNIN: Yes, I will.  Good

          4  afternoon.  My name is Felicia Mennin and I'm the

          5  Director of Financial Disclosure for the New York

          6  City Conflict of Interest Board, as well as Special

          7  Counsel to the Board.  With me, as the Chairperson

          8  acknowledged, is our Executive Director, Mark

          9  Davies, as well as our General Counsel Wayne Hawley

         10  and members of the Financial Disclosure Unit to

         11  assist us in answering your questions.

         12                 I am here to testify in support of

         13  Intro. 165, which would enact certain amendments to

         14  Administrative Code, Section 12 110 of the City's

         15  Financial Disclosure Law.

         16                 As Ms. Meara mentioned, the Board's

         17  proposed Intro. 165 is to address three specific

         18  areas.  First to make certain corrections, many of

         19  them technical in nature, which have been discussed

         20  occasions by the complete revision to the Financial

         21  Disclosure Law in 2003; the second is to bring the

         22  City's Financial Disclosure Law into compliance with

         23  recent changes in State Laws, we also discussed; and

         24  third to conform the Financial Disclosure Law to

         25  long- standing Board practices to fully define and
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          2  disclose those practices, so that the public knows

          3  exactly what they are, providing greater

          4  transparency to our procedures.

          5                 I will briefly discuss with you

          6  changes, which we summarized in the hand- out

          7  distributed.  Did everyone receive that?

          8                 First I will deal with what we call

          9  the "technical changes", those that appear in

         10  Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 7 and 12.  They can easily be

         11  grouped together.  In 2003 the Council, at our

         12  request, completely revised the Financial Disclosure

         13  Law, the first such revision since the Law was

         14  originally enacted over 25- years ago.

         15                 That revision has substantially

         16  streamlined the law, in particular by eliminating

         17  filers, at little risk of conflict of interest. As a

         18  result of the 2003 amendments, the number of filers

         19  was reduced from 13 thousand to 8 thousand.  But as

         20  often occurs with complete revisions, there are

         21  certain clean- up amendments that are necessary.

         22                 Specifically, the first that we have

         23  mentioned is that the law must be amended to include

         24  agencies inadvertently excluded by the 2003

         25  amendment that like the Council and the Mayor's
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          2  Office, do not employ the M- Level indicators for

          3  their managers.  I believe Ms. Meara had eloquently

          4  sort of summarized and addressed the import of that

          5  amendment, so I will not belabor it, unless you have

          6  questions about that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: May I ask you to

          8  pause for just a moment, as we have technical

          9  difficulties.  Thank you very much.

         10                 MS. MENNIN:  The amendment also

         11  replaced a technically incorrect reference to M-

         12  Titles in the current law, with the reference to the

         13  Mayor's Management Pay Plan Indicators. It's a very

         14  technical change, but one that does make difference,

         15  when people are seeking to interrpret the law.

         16                 The 2003 amendments also

         17  inadvertently eliminated the requirement that the

         18  Board notify a filer, when his or her report is

         19  requested by the media or other member of the

         20  public. Intro. 165, as Ms. Meara also mentioned,

         21  restores that requirement and that is a very

         22  important restoration to put the filer on notice

         23  that the report has been requested.

         24                 Intro. 165 also makes certain

         25  technical amendments that are thoroughly listed in
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          2  the third paragraph of the summary, which I have

          3  distributed, such as eliminating repetitive

          4  definitions of relatives and correcting inadvertent

          5  omissions.  For example, the amendment includes the

          6  term "child" within the definition of relative, as

          7  the one example and that is necessary for purposes

          8  of accurately completing our filings.

          9                 The second type of amendments were

         10  those necessitated by changes in the State Law.  In

         11  2003 and 2004, State Law mandated that certain

         12  Housing Development Corporation members and staff,

         13  and certain tax assessors file Financial Disclosure

         14  Reports with the Board.  I believe one of the

         15  members had requested that we specify the agencies

         16  affected by the State Law changes and those are two.

         17                 The amendments add these new filers

         18  and in addition, at a catch- all provision that any

         19  other person shall file with the Board when mandated

         20  by State Law to do so.  At this point I would

         21  mention that the Public Authorities Accountability

         22  Act, which went into effect in early 2006 has

         23  mandated additional classes of filers that will have

         24  to file next year.  This amendment will obviate the

         25  need to come back to the Council to expand the
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          2  classifications at a later date.

          3                 Finally, Intro. 165 makes several

          4  changes to the Financial Disclosure Law to

          5  conformance to the Boards long- standing practices

          6  and more thoroughly spelling out those practices for

          7  the public, including a provision that sets forth in

          8  detail, the procedure for notifying a filer of the

          9  Board's determination concerning his or her privacy

         10  request and expressly notifying the filer of his or

         11  her right to appeal that determination.  It also

         12  specifies how an appeal may be brought.

         13                 Second, there is an amendment that

         14  authorizes the Board to withhold information in a

         15  report from public inspection, even when the filer

         16  is not requested that it be withheld.  In instances

         17  where the Board finds that release of the

         18  information would constitute a risk to the safety or

         19  security of any person.

         20                 Ms. Meara provided one example of the

         21  type of instance when we would exercise that

         22  suasponte discretion.  Often filers will reveal home

         23  addresses where they are not required or bank

         24  account numbers or names and identities of their

         25  unemancipated children in sections of the form where
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          2  that information is really not required.  In the

          3  past we have removed that information, even if the

          4  filer has not requested it because they were either

          5  unaware that they could or they mistakenly included

          6  it.

          7                 With respect to privacy, the

          8  amendments further specify that when a filer amends

          9  his or her report, the original report is subject to

         10  the same privacy or restriction as the amended

         11  report.  In other words the filer may apply for

         12  privacy for the original report, as well as a

         13  portion of the amended report.  That was not clear

         14  in the prior law.  The amendments also make explicit

         15  that the Board may release the filers entire report

         16  to a law enforcement agency, solely for criminal law

         17  enforcement purposes, without notification to the

         18  filer.

         19                 When we met with Council staff to

         20  discuss the bill, it was suggested that the Council

         21  would propose that the bill be amended to require

         22  that the Law Enforcement Agency specify that its

         23  request for the report was being made solely for a

         24  criminal law enforcement purpose.  That is the

         25  intent of the amendment that we proposed and we
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          2  fully support that type of further amendment.

          3                 And finally there is an amendment

          4  that would characterize direct payments for official

          5  expenses as a reimbursement in the Financial

          6  Disclosure Report, rather than as a gift.  For

          7  example, when a prospective vendor pays a City

          8  official travel expenses to visit the vendor's

          9  manufacturing plant, that would be listed as a

         10  reimbursement on the financial disclosure form

         11  rather than as a gift to that official, because it

         12  really more accurately characterizes the nature of

         13  that transaction.  In the past there was apparently

         14  a lot of confusion over whether or not those types

         15  of reimbursement should be disclosed.

         16                 Intro. 165 is an important bill and

         17  for of the reasons that I have discussed, the Board

         18  strongly endorses this enactment and respectfully

         19  requests that the Council pass the bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thank you so

         21  much for your testimony.  All right. I have a

         22  question.  The code states that, and this is quotes,

         23   "no such notification shall be required if a report

         24  is requested by law enforcement".  Are there any

         25  specific instances where the COIB would notify the
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          2  filer that their report has be inspected or has been

          3  requested, in advance of that inspection, by Law

          4  Enforcement Agency?

          5                 MS. MENNIN: No.  In fact were we to

          6  do so, we might be in jeopardy of being held in

          7  contempt of a judicial order, we might be accused of

          8  obstructing governmental administration or

          9  obstructing justice, if the agency involved was a

         10  federal agency.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: So, you are

         12  saying there are no instances where a filer would be

         13  notified?

         14                 MS. MENNIN: When the report is

         15  requested by a criminal justice law enforcement

         16  agency --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS:  It doesn't have

         18  to be criminal, any other law enforcement agency, it

         19  doesn't have to be necessarily criminal.

         20                 MS. MENNIN: Only for a law

         21  enforcement agency that is involved in the

         22  enforcement of the criminal laws.  That is what I

         23  believe we tried to specify in the proposed

         24  amendment.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: All right.  Do
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          2  any of my colleagues have any questions?  Council

          3  Member Garodnick.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Just to

          5  follow up on that for one second.  The proposed

          6  amendment, is that currently in the draft of this

          7  law, or is that something you are working with

          8  Counsel of this Committee on?

          9                 MS. MENNIN: The only change to the

         10  currently proposed language would be to insert the

         11  word criminal, before the word "law enforcement

         12  agency".  And we have spoken to Counsel staff about

         13  that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So we would

         15  authorize full disclosure of reports to criminal law

         16  enforcement agencies, as opposed to just law

         17  enforcement agencies --

         18                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- Without

         20  notification to the filer.

         21                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And that's

         23  your current practice?

         24                 MS. MENNIN: That is.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Criminal
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          2  only.

          3                 MS. MENNIN: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  One

          5  of the questions that I wanted to follow up on from

          6  before was the "catch all" provision.  There is

          7  nothing that would remain uncovered today if we were

          8  to pass this that would be subject to the catch- all

          9  provision, is there?

         10                 MS. MENNIN: Well, the Public

         11  Authorities Accountability Act that was passed

         12  earlier this year, those additional filers mandated

         13  by Public Authorities Accountability Act would be

         14  picked up by the catch- all provision.  And that was

         15  the reason, one of the reasons that we wanted to

         16  include it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I see.  Was

         18  there any thought as to why we wouldn't specify

         19  them, like we did for HDC or any of these others

         20  specifically?

         21                 MR. DAVIES: Well, the Public

         22  Authorities Accountability Act wasn't passed until

         23  January 16th of this year. So at that point the

         24  whole process would have to come back, that's one

         25  reason.  Because the bill, I don't know if it had
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          2  been introduced at that point.  But by the time we

          3  became aware of the Public Authorities

          4  Accountability Act, which was sometime in February,

          5  the process on 165 was already far ahead.  So we

          6  would have had to either try to pull the bill, or

          7  get amendment to the bill and so forth.  That's one

          8  issue.  The other problem is --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Let me stop

         10  you on that for one second because it seems to me we

         11  are amending this bill as we go, you know we are

         12  adding criminal.

         13                 MR. DAVIES: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  So, if

         15  there were an issue about specifying, you know, I

         16  don't understand before, it seems like we are in the

         17  perfect time of the process that if we need to

         18  define it, we should just go ahead and define it.

         19                 MR. DAVIES: The other problem is, I

         20  mean quite frankly the Public Authorities

         21  Accountability Act for the City of New York in the

         22  FD area is really a disaster.  This is a complete

         23  disaster.  And one of the problems is it is pretty

         24  unclear exactly who is included.  We don't even know

         25  at this point who is included in that bill.  I
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          2  suppose we could just copy the State language, and

          3  then figure it out later.  We're not even exactly

          4  sure. And already apart from that is the issue that

          5  the State just seems to be on a roll now, and every

          6  year or so they just pass a law, adding yet another

          7  category of filers.  So that is the reason for the

          8  catch all, so that we didn't have to come back and

          9  say okay -- and in addition to the Public

         10  Authorities Accountability Act, trying to figure out

         11  who exactly it is that is supposed to file.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well, I can

         13  certainly understand the reason for a catch- all.

         14  Particularly when the State is moving in a trend

         15  toward requiring more disclosure for more and more

         16  people.  But, I am a little concerned about the idea

         17  of there being a catch- all provision in this piece

         18  of legislation, which covers an existing State law,

         19  which is presently unclear to us, where we may not

         20  actually be able to know who on a City level would

         21  be subject to it.

         22                 MS. MENNIN: I think one of the issues

         23  with the Public Authorities Accountability Act, is

         24  that there are internal inconsistencies in the

         25  definitions that are used to define the additional
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          2  entities that are included as filers with the

          3  Conflicts of Interest Board.  And, pending further

          4  clarification from the State, it's going to be

          5  difficult to specify exactly what they mean.  If we

          6  adopt the language that exists now in the PAAA,

          7  there may be a legislative amendment in a couple of

          8  months that clarifies the existing inconsistencies.

          9  So, we felt that it was better to leave the catch-

         10  all for that reason and also for the reason that

         11  since the State does seem to be including additional

         12  categories rather with greater frequencies that we

         13  limit it to those individuals who are mandated by

         14  State law to file and leave it as a true catch- all.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  I

         16  definitely understand the reason why we would want

         17  to do it going forward. Let me just ask specifically

         18  on the people who would be potentially covered by

         19  the PAAA of New York City.  How will the Conflict of

         20  Interest Board go about attempting to notify people

         21  that they are required to file under a new City

         22  provision, if we don't quite understand who is

         23  required to under State law?

         24                 MR. DAVIES: Well, first of all, you

         25  have to be notified or you don't have to file for
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          2  starters.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And this is

          4  the Conflict of Interest Board who had the

          5  responsibility for notifying all required filers

          6  under the law of New York City.

          7                 MR. DAVIES: Right. The PAAA, is only

          8  two sections to this fairly lengthy bill.  It's

          9  Chapter 776, Laws of 2005, although it wasn't

         10  actually enacted until 2006.

         11                 It says, Board Members, office and

         12  employees of the local public authority shall file

         13  Financial Disclosure forms with the County Board of

         14  Ethics, which for New York City of course is us,

         15  pursuant to Article 18, a General Municipal Law.

         16  And of course the General Municipal Law is what

         17  mandates that we have financial disclosure in the

         18  City of New York.  The problem is that the

         19  definitions in the Public Authorities Accountability

         20  Act do not have anything called the Local Public

         21  Authority.  They do have something called the Local

         22  Authority.  Now is the Local Authority the same as

         23  the Local Public Authority or is a Local Public

         24  Authority only include, for example, public

         25  authorities, public benefit corporations within the

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND ETHICS

          2  local authority.

          3                 So, the point is, what we are trying

          4  to do is working with the Law Department, this is

          5  going to take many months. In fact, our Board partly

          6  is supposed to have those filers this year.  Our

          7  Board says, there is no way we can do it, we don't

          8  even know who is supposed to file at this point.  So

          9  we are working with the Law Department getting their

         10  guidance and we will be working with the State,

         11  trying to figure out exactly what categories of

         12  people who are supposed to file.  In addition, our

         13  Financial Disclosure Unit is going through the lists

         14  of all of the City affiliated not- for- profits,

         15  which of course is the main issue here, that both

         16  the City Hall has, the Mayor's Office and in

         17  addition the Law Department has, that we have for

         18  other purposes and so forth and trying to construct

         19  essentially a list of all possible agencies, or

         20  entities rather, to be included within this.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Is there

         22  such a thing as an advisory opinion at the State

         23  level to help us discern whether this would be

         24  intended, you know, we are talking about a slight

         25  change in words, which may have been intended to
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          2  imply exactly the same thing but it's not clear.  Is

          3  there such a thing?

          4                 MR. DAVIES: Actually there is.  The

          5  State Attorney General's Office will give informal

          6  opinions.  And those have been sought occasionally.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: That might

          8  do the trick for us.

          9                 MR. DAVIES: That is always available.

         10    Ultimately it is a Conflicts of Interests Board

         11  responsibility.  You know, I've been seeking

         12  guidance from everybody that we can get guidance

         13  from.

         14                 So, that's why we haven't

         15  specifically addressed the PAAA or the reasons we

         16  haven't specifically addressed the PAAA, is because

         17  in part we're not exactly sure.  We could just copy

         18  the State language, I suppose.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: But, it

         20  still wouldn't help you figure out who to notify.

         21                 MR. DAVIES: No. Not at this point.

         22  This is a process of many, many months before we can

         23  finally figure out exactly who it is that is going

         24  to have to file. And of course the big problem, I

         25  don't want to get us astray here, but a big problem
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          2  is New York City, unlike every other municipality in

          3  the State, has to have this 32- page form.  You

          4  can't ask Board Members of not- for profits to fill

          5  out a 32- page form, they are not go to do it.  So

          6  we have a lot of issues here, very complex issues,

          7  going far beyond this bill that we have to get

          8  straightened out and we probably will be coming to

          9  the Council at some point and asking for you

         10  assistance.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, let

         12  me ask, if I may Madam Chair, just a few more

         13  questions here.  One is, if a filer wants to

         14  withhold information from public inspection for

         15  personal safety reasons, we know that there are

         16  certain things that are inadvertently included on

         17  these forms, which you have a process, which I want

         18  to ask you about also, to protect filers from

         19  inadvertently doing things that might be counter to

         20  their own safety and security.  But, if somebody

         21  actively wants to withhold certain information from

         22  public inspection for personal or safety reasons,

         23  what are the provisions under this law, which COIB

         24  would weigh their privacy rights with the public's

         25  rights for information.  What is the process?
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          2                 MS. MENNIN: Actually the standard,

          3  well the process is that the Board's staff applies

          4  the written factors that are apparently enumerated

          5  in the Financial Disclosure Law, Section 12

          6  110(e)Sub(1)(b) and then Items 1 through 4 and we

          7  consider whether the items are of a highly personal

          8  nature, whether the item in any way relates to the

          9  duties of the position held by such person,

         10  including whether there are security or safety

         11  issues related to such duties.  Three, whether the

         12  disclosure poses a risk to the security or safety of

         13  the reporting person or any other individual. And 4,

         14  whether the item involves an actual or potential

         15  conflict of interest and those are the four factors.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And those

         17  are factors which you currently have under your own

         18  rules, is that right?

         19                 MS. MENNIN: Actually, it's part of

         20  the current Financial Disclosure Law.  So that

         21  section will not be amended. Those standards will

         22  remain.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, that's

         24  not changed at all, 165.

         25                 MS. MENNIN: No. Not at all, 165.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: One sixty

          3  five does not touch that.

          4                 MS. MENNIN: No. What it does do is

          5  just clarify a bit more what the procedures are for

          6  someone seeking privacy and specifies that the

          7  information -- once a person makes a request for

          8  privacy, the Board will evaluate that request.  And

          9  upon a denial, for example, they will not release

         10  the information for ten days, giving the filer ample

         11  opportunity to go to State court and seek a review

         12  of our determination.  And that was not specified in

         13  the prior law, and it is now.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I see.  So

         15  it's just the opportunity for denial, for a filer to

         16  actually appeal your decision and that is what's

         17  created by 165.  Nothing about the standards and

         18  criteria by which you go about evaluating whether

         19  something in fact violates somebody's privacy or

         20  security or anything.

         21                 MS. MENNIN: That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Did you

         23  want to add something else?  I didn't mean to

         24  interrupt you.

         25                 MS. MENNIN: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  The

          3  suasponte review of an application where there is

          4  some risk to the security and safety of a person,

          5  which you identify, which is not something that a

          6  filer might necessarily recognize.  What is your

          7  process for that?  Do you do a review of each one of

          8  these applications for the purpose of protecting

          9  filers?

         10                 MS. MENNIN: Yes, we do.  No report is

         11  ever released before it is reviewed by a member of

         12  the staff who then identifies the issue, the

         13  specific requests for privacy, and then either I, as

         14  Director of the Unit, or the Executive Director --

         15  I review the recommendation to grant or deny privacy

         16  and the Executive Director is ultimately the person

         17  who makes the determination on behalf of the Board

         18  as to whether or not the request will be granted.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: This a

         20  request from?            MS. MENNIN: The filer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: No, no,

         22  this is a situation where there is no filer request.

         23    You know, I'm running for the City Council, I send

         24  you my 35- page form.  You look at it and say, oh,

         25  this guy just told us something we really didn't
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          2  need to know and I'm curious about your internal

          3  process for that.

          4                 MS. MENNIN: I'm sorry, I

          5  misunderstood you.  Under those circumstances,

          6  again, a staff member would review the filing.

          7  Anything that appears to have been revealed

          8  inadvertently is brought to my attention.  I

          9  evaluate it, looking at the standards that exist in

         10  the statute and then make a recommendation to the

         11  Executive Director, who either approves it or denies

         12  it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, it is

         14  the same standard that you would be considering if a

         15  filer had requested it on their own.

         16                 MS. MENNIN: That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  For

         18  a request, for a disclosure by a member of the

         19  public?  This just codifies what is currently your

         20  practice for notifying a filer that it's been

         21  requested, is that right?

         22                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.  And in fact, it

         23  restores the law, a sentence that must have been

         24  inadvertently deleted in the 2003 revision.  Because

         25  it has always been our practice and it had been the
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          2  law prior to the extensive revisions in 2003, to

          3  notify a filer each time his or her form has been

          4  requested.  And apparently a line was dropped from

          5  the 2003 statute, the net result of which was that

          6  this statute said, we would only notify them if

          7  there was a privacy request.  So any filer who had

          8  not made a request for privacy under the 2004 rule

          9  would not get notified, according to the law.  So

         10  this merely restores what our practices continue to

         11  be, as well as what it was prior to this.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So, under

         13  any circumstances, whether somebody has specifically

         14  requested privacy on their information or not.  I

         15  just should share with you antidotally there has

         16  been request made to a number of people where

         17  somebody filled out that form, which I guess is, I

         18  don't know, there is a form which somebody needs to

         19  complete when they are requesting this information

         20   --

         21                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: -- In which

         23  it is illegible or hard to figure out exactly who

         24  the person is requesting the information.  I don't

         25  know it this is a hand- written thing, or whether
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          2  the requestor has the ability to hide their identity

          3  in any way.  How exactly is it done, because I've

          4  heard stories about this.

          5                 MS. MENNIN: Oh, sure.  The requestor

          6  must personally appear in our office, fill out the

          7  form, then we evaluate the request.  Before we

          8  release the report, that person has to appear, and

          9  present identification.  So we do have a record of

         10  who the requestor was.  And if the report itself is

         11  illegible, if anyone has a problem with that they

         12  can call us and we will tell you who the person was

         13  who made the request.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Last

         15  question I have for you.  Thank you for bearing with

         16  me here.  There has been a lot of discussion about

         17  disclosure for members of community boards locally.

         18  Does this have any change effect on that at all and

         19  if so what impact would this have on disclosure for

         20  community board members?

         21                 MR. DAVIES:  Intro. 165 has no effect

         22  whatsoever. This however is, we were aware of this

         23  when this bill was introduced.  If you will bear

         24  with me for a moment, unfortunately it's a little

         25  complicated.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Let me interrupt

          3  you please. Would you please introduce yourself?

          4                 MR. DAVIES: Sorry.  Mark Davies,

          5  Executive Director, New York City Conflicts of

          6  Interest Board.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thank you so

          8  much.  And I want to acknowledge that we have been

          9  joined by Council Member Jackson.

         10                 MR. DAVIES: As I mentioned, New York

         11  State mandates financial disclosure filing by all

         12  Counties, Cities, towns and villages in the state

         13  with a population of 50,000 or more.  Only New York

         14  City is mandated to have a form, at least as

         15  stringent in scope and substance as the State form,

         16  which is a 32- page form.

         17                 Our form does not go beyond the

         18  State. It is essentially the same as the State.

         19  With the 2003 amendments, we have now cut back our

         20  filers to essentially we only have filers who are

         21  mandated by State Law to file.  Before 2003 we had a

         22  lot of, we had another 5,000 people filing that were

         23  not mandated by the State to file.  So essentially,

         24  we are at the minimum that the State allows.

         25                 The problem is, that the State Law
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          2  makes no distinction between compensated and

          3  uncompensated members of boards and commissions.

          4  Under State Law, whether you are compensated or

          5  uncompensated member of board or commission, you are

          6  still required to file.

          7                 This, obviously outside the City is

          8  not such a big deal because you can have a short

          9  form.  In the City of New York you're saying people

         10  have to fill out this 32 page form, even if you are

         11  uncompensated Board of Commission.  As a result of

         12  that, the City has essentially been out of

         13  compliance with State law in regard to uncompensated

         14  members of Boards of Commissions.  And we just kind

         15  of ignore the fact that we are out of compliance

         16  with State law for since 1990.

         17                 The problem is with this PAAA, you

         18  are going to have people filing on not- for- profits

         19  for example.  There is no way you can tell an

         20  uncompensated member of a not- for- profit that they

         21  have to file, and yet someone who is a board member

         22  of the TLC, does not have to file. Because as a

         23  result of this, this is an issue that the Council

         24  and the Administration are going to have to face in

         25  this calendar year.  They are going to have to
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          2  somehow, I hope, convince the State Legislator, to

          3  give us some relief in regards to PAAA and we would

          4  hope to uncompensated members of the Boards of

          5  Commission because we are going to have to bring

          6  City Law into compliance with State Law in regard to

          7  uncompensated members of Boards of Commissions.

          8  That is not something we are recommending at this

          9  point because we are just going to lose too many

         10  Board of Commission members.  We just can't do it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I think

         12  that's right. That obviously is excessive and

         13  doesn't work for New York City and we are the only

         14  ones who would fall into that category.

         15                 But, so just I understand it, it is

         16  the practice of the Conflicts of Interest Board

         17  presently, not to send to uncompensated members of

         18  Boards of Commissions the 35 page form.

         19                 MR. DAVIES: That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: I want to take

         23  this time to acknowledge that Wayne Hawley

         24  (phonetic) of COIB is here and also Chris Gonzalez,

         25  City Legislative representative from the Mayor's
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          2  Office, who is brand new on the job. So welcome.

          3  Also, Council Member Melinda Katz, who is a Member

          4  of this Committee would like to be present, is going

          5  to try to be present but she is Chairing the Land

          6  Use Committee across the street and there were some

          7  30 odd people there to testify.  Council Member

          8  Sears, questions?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well actually,

         10  I think most of them have really answered this.

         11  Just for some clarification, I'm sorry I was late,

         12  but I've been running back and forth between these

         13  meetings, the catch- all. Is the catch- all an

         14  anticipation of what the State may do?

         15                 MS. MENNIN: Yes, it is.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Put it that

         17  broadly?

         18                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.  Why

         20  would we do something Madam Chair?  I mean in

         21  legislation, an anticipation of what the State may

         22  do, when the State has proven time and again they

         23  are not quite sure of anything that they do.  So, I

         24  mean, I can say that.  As a result, even though it

         25  may necessitate your coming back to the Committee, I
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          2  think it's a very bad policy to do something that

          3  anticipates the action of another legislative body

          4  when they haven't done that already.  I think when

          5  you are coming to things like that, they need to be

          6  specific.  I really think when the doors are left

          7  open, then it is left to interpretation and I could

          8  be wrong and that's why I'm raising it, because I

          9  think it needs to be clarified.  And the community

         10  boards are a good example, because I think that has

         11  been left open and certainly I have gotten a lot of

         12  calls about that.  But, it doesn't mean that some

         13  members of the community board should be excused

         14  from it, such as Chairman perhaps, or you know one

         15  or two.

         16                 But to anticipate the categories,

         17  without they're being named, what they are doing, I

         18  just think that's a dangerous thing to do.  And as a

         19  layperson, as a non-lawyer, but as a legislator,

         20  we've had experiences in this Council and we've had

         21  to go back and do amendments to absolutely clarify

         22  and clear up the ambiguities in legislation and I

         23  just don't know if that catch- all would necessitate

         24  having to clear up ambiguities again.  I don't know.

         25    I'm raising that as a lay person and that was the
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          2  main thing I wanted to ask because you did address

          3  the community boards.

          4                 Also, and I think I have to agree

          5  with my colleague, it seems that 165 gets amended as

          6  you talk, I have a problem with that too, because if

          7  there are suggestions and then we go back and you

          8  have a meeting with the Administration, and you

          9  clear up what's here before anything, that's a

         10  different story.  You're looking at it, you're

         11  making corrections, you're adding, you're taking

         12  away. So I would think that what you are doing is

         13  proposing recommendations, not that we are amending

         14  something that has a whole different process,

         15  because that's what the Hearing is about. The

         16  Hearing is about to correct some things that needed

         17  to be corrected and then you go you work on the

         18  existing proposed Intro. And correct it.  I would

         19  agree, it seems that you used the word amendment

         20  quite a bit.

         21                 MR. DAVIES: Could I respond to that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes, sure.

         23                 MR. DAVIES: Actually there are only

         24  two changes; one, there is a typo in the bill that

         25  we have given to Counsel, that needs to be
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          2  corrected, it says and, it should say "any."  The

          3  only other change is the issue of the word

          4   "criminal" before enforcement proceedings. Those

          5  are the only changes that we are suggesting in

          6  Intro. 165 at all.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

          8                 MR. DAVIES: We are suggesting no

          9  other changes.

         10                 The other point, in respect to the

         11  catch- all provision.  Of course the catch- all

         12  provision already includes something, namely those

         13  entities covered by the Public Authorities

         14  Accountability Act.  When the State tells us that we

         15  have to collect filings from certain persons, we

         16  have to do that, regardless of what the City

         17  Legislation says.  And so for example, last year,

         18  even in the absence of, it changed 12- 110, we

         19  required these tax assessors to file, because the

         20  State told us we have to require tax assessors to

         21  file and we did require tax assessors to file.  The

         22  problem is, if these people are not included within

         23  12 110, if the Conflicts Board simply requires them

         24  to file pursuant to State Law, we don't have the

         25  authority to impose a late filing fine on them. This
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          2  means for example, you can have certain persons file

          3  with us pursuant to State Law directly, everybody

          4  else files pursuant to Local Law, the person that is

          5  late because they are under 12- 110 would get

          6  whacked with a $500 fine, the person that was late

          7  under State Law, we say, okay you're late, that's

          8  okay. And to us, that is just so unfair to the City

          9  filers.  That's another reason why we have the

         10  catch- all as we don't want to be in the position

         11  where we are fining people that are under 12- 110

         12  and yet somebody else that files under State Law,

         13  that is not under 12 110, we can't fine them.  We

         14  just don't like that unfairness.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I would

         16  agree with that. Did you mention earlier what the

         17  State Law requires that you look at not- for-

         18  profits?

         19                 MR. DAVIES: Yes, I did mention that,

         20  the Public Authorities Accountability Act.

         21  Unfortunately.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But, it's not

         23  being done now.

         24                 MR. DAVIES: We couldn't do it this

         25  year, we just didn't have the time because the law
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          2  wasn't enacted until January 16th of this year,

          3  which was too late in our process to get geared up.

          4  We started gearing up for this in the fall.  So it

          5  was physically too late to do it this year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So, how are you

          7  going to handle that, to be in compliance with the

          8  State Law?  Because it's ultimately going to come

          9  back to this Committee.

         10                 MR. DAVIES: It will.  We are, as I

         11  mentioned before, trying to put together a list of

         12  what entities we think are required to file.  Right

         13  now we have about 100 City agencies that file with

         14  us.  Our latest count is that it will require at

         15  least an additional 150 entities who will file with

         16  us.  So that's a huge  increase.  There is a lot of

         17  these City affiliated not- for- profits out there.

         18  Plus of course they are going to pick up the

         19  uncompensated members of Boards of Commissions.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's huge.

         21                 MR. DAVIES: It is huge.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You don't even

         23  have staff to do this.

         24                 MR. DAVIES: The whole thing is

         25  ridiculous.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's absurd.

          3                 MR. DAVIES: But, in addition, it is

          4  absolutely critical that the State Legislature give

          5  us relief.  Not us personally, but the City of New

          6  York relief with respect to this. We will be working

          7  with City Legislative Affairs again of course, and

          8  with the Council to try and work this out and we are

          9  hoping that we can maybe at least long last get our

         10  proposed amendment to State Law, which would

         11  authorize the Board to reduce the scope of the

         12  financial disclosure form.

         13                 Our Board itself has stated on many,

         14  many occasions, they believe the current form is too

         15  long, it's too invasive, that there should certainly

         16  at the very least be a short form for the vast

         17  majority of filers.  There is no reason for someone

         18  that makes $30 thousand a year involved in

         19  purchasing for the Department of Sanitation to be

         20  filling out a 32 page form.  It doesn't make sense.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You are

         22  absolutely right.

         23                 MR. DAVIES: And our Board has said

         24  this repeatedly and we will be looking to the State

         25  for some kind of relief.  It the State just gives us
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          2  the authority to reduce the scope of the form, that

          3  will take care of the problem with the not- for-

          4  profits. Should the not- for- profits be filing?

          5  Fine.  They can file a two page form. They don't

          6  have to file a 32 page form. So, we will be looking

          7  to the State for relief on this.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.  Thank

          9  you.  And if I may say, I'm happy to see all of you

         10  again, really.

         11                 MR. DAVIES: Thank you Council Member.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I enjoyed

         13  working with you, it was a lovely experience.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thank you so

         15  much Council Member.  In light of the questions and

         16  issues that you have raised and also Council Member

         17  Garodnick, so effectively, I have also been informed

         18  by our Legislative Director, Bob Newman, that these

         19  are issues that will be followed up on and this

         20  Committee will consider what resolutions, we might

         21  be able to put forth in order to try to see to it

         22  that the State does clarify, because it is unfair,

         23  it is unfair to those who volunteer on these boards

         24  and it is also unfair to COIB to triple what

         25  reporting they will be receiving, that you will be
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          2  receiving.  Council Member Lanza, please.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you Madam

          4  Chair.  Let me begin by adding my voice to what has

          5  been discussed here.  Much ground has been covered,

          6  so I'll be brief.

          7                 We can't underplay the importance of

          8  being part of obtaining the relief that is being

          9  discussed here, especially when it comes, Madam

         10  Chair and I urge you and I know you will, bring your

         11  leadership to this issue and that of this Committee.

         12    We must do everything we can to help provide that

         13  relief.  Especially during the discussion,

         14  questions, answers, elicited by Council Member

         15  Garodnick when it comes to community boards.  Your

         16  filings by members of community boards would have an

         17  absolute disastrous and chilling effect with respect

         18  to encouraging people to do precisely what we need

         19  them to do, which is to come forward in their

         20  communities to be part of the solution to help

         21  protect and preserve and to serve their communities,

         22  which so many people across the City already do and

         23  wish to do.  In effect to just throw this obstacle

         24  in their way would just have really horrific effect

         25  on the good work that community boards do.  So, that
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          2  really needs to be had and we need to do everything

          3  we can to make sure that it obtained.  So, I just

          4  wanted to add my voice in that regard.

          5                 As I said, much of what I wanted to

          6  discuss was covered.  A couple of quick questions.

          7  Going back to the law enforcement component of

          8  request for report.  How or who, obviously COIB, but

          9  how is it established that such a request is being

         10  requested solely for a law enforcement function?

         11  What is the process involved there?

         12                 MS. MENNIN: We require them to submit

         13  a writing to us on their official letterhead that so

         14  states and it is usually self- evident from the

         15  writing. If it comes from the FBI, there

         16  jurisdiction is exclusively criminal.  And we

         17  require them to state that it is to be used in

         18  connection with criminal law enforcement proceeding.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: And so there is

         20  a process to distinguish between perhaps a person

         21  who works within law enforcement making a request of

         22  an individual as opposed to an individual in law

         23  enforcement that is making a request as part of an

         24  on- going or established, or bona fide law

         25  enforcement criminal function.
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          2                 MS. MENNIN: Anyone who is not doing

          3  it as part of a bona fide ongoing criminal function,

          4  and that is usually apparent from the way the

          5  request comes in or in the writing that is

          6  submitted, doesn't get access to the report.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  And there is a

          8  process in place to distinguish between the two.

          9                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: I'm not sure of

         11  this, I may be a little off the beaten path here,

         12  but it was raised briefly before, with respect to

         13  the actual mechanical process of filing, where are

         14  we with respect to, for instance here at the City

         15  Council, if there are difficulties or prohibition

         16  with respect to personal delivery of the form and so

         17  I was just wondering where we are in the updating

         18  the process.  This is important, these reports, it's

         19  important to understand and appreciate that we don't

         20  do this simply because we are mandated to do this,

         21  we do this because it's part of good government.

         22  It's important that we have a process that allows

         23  for the ease of filing so that we ensure that we

         24  carry out this important public function.

         25                 MS. MENNIN: Well, let me say, we have
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          2  certainly appreciated the support that we have

          3  gotten from the Council in the past and that we

          4  continue to get.  This year you will be filing

          5  electronically.  The mechanism and the program is in

          6  place.  It's undergoing its final stages of

          7  development and testing, security testing through

          8  the Department of Technology and Community Services

          9  as we speak.  We will be beginning the filing period

         10  most likely June 5th and because it is a new program

         11  the filing period will be six weeks this year.  So

         12  it will probably run from June 5th through the

         13  middle of July.

         14                 The liaison for the Council has

         15  attended a training session that we have conducted

         16  for all liaisons for City agencies through DoITT at

         17  a DCAS's facility, where they have actually had

         18  hands- on training of how to use the program and how

         19  to access the Administrative portions of it.

         20                 I have written a rather lengthy

         21  memorandum that we distributed to your liaison a

         22  while ago, kind of outlining the process and

         23  hopefully answering most of the questions a filer

         24  would have about the electronic process.  And if you

         25  haven't gotten that yet, I would be happy to
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          2  personally email it to you.  And then, if you have

          3  any further questions, just email me and I will

          4  answer them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: That's great

          6  news.  So every filer, required to file will have

          7  the ability to personally electronically file this

          8  year.

          9                 MS. MENNIN. Yes.  That is our

         10  understanding.  And they will be able to do it

         11  remotely as well, as you will learn in this

         12  memorandum.  So, they can do it from home.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: That's great.

         14  Thank you. Thank you Madam Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thank you so

         16  much.  I just want to add, I know Councilman Jackson

         17  has a question, but I just wanted to ask about this

         18  electronic filing and the timing because many of my

         19  colleagues, I found out not by any notice from COIB,

         20  but I just called because I wanted to know about

         21  filing and was told at that time that the time would

         22  be extended because of the electronic filing that

         23  would be done this year for the first time.  And so

         24  many colleagues were finding out the same way by

         25  just calling. They did not have any notice and some
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          2  of my Committee Members have no notice about this.

          3                 MS. MENNIN: I'm a little puzzled by

          4  that because my memorandum is dated March 29th and

          5  additionally, I believe, the agency liaisons have

          6  gone through training and have been given a

          7  schedule, but again we'll take steps to make sure

          8  that everything that we have given out is being

          9  distributed.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: All right.  And

         11  Councilman Jackson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

         13  Madam Chair.  Let me apologize for coming late. I

         14  was tied up in, as you know, we had a caucus meeting

         15  and then there was a Budget Response Press

         16  Conference.  I know you could not attend because you

         17  were Chairing this meeting, but let me just

         18  apologize for being late.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: I accept your

         20  apology and I made excuses for you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         22  With respect to the electronic filing, I served as a

         23  trustee for a foundation, The SUNY New Paltz

         24  Foundation, and I must file with the State also.  I

         25  have filed electronically with the State.  If I do
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          2  that, or if any of my colleagues must file with the

          3  State of New York electronically, do we then have to

          4  file with the City, or will you accept that filing,

          5  since it's the same.

          6                 MS. MENNIN: That's a very good

          7  question.  One of the few details that we haven't

          8  actually worked out yet because by law you are

          9  permitted to submit your State filing to us in lieu

         10  of the City filing.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: In lieu of

         12  the City filing.

         13                 MS. MENNIN: Yes.  But, exactly how

         14  that will be handled, I promise I will get you an

         15  answer very shortly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: The deadline,

         17  I believe, my notice deadline to file with the State

         18  is May 15th.

         19                 MS. MENNIN: Yes. May 15th.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  So you

         21  can email me and I'll give you my personal email a

         22  little later.  But, if you would give notice to

         23  Council because there may be other colleagues of

         24  mine that may have to also file with the State.

         25                 MS. MENNIN: Certainly.  Thank you.  I
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          2  will do that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you and

          4  your colleagues for everything that you are doing.

          5  Obviously you have a yeoman's job and I know that we

          6  had a discussion in the Preliminary Executive

          7  Budget, the Mayor has released his Executive Budget

          8  today and I don't know whether or not, and I haven't

          9  looked at that specifically to Conflicts of Interest

         10  Board, as far as whether any increase in funding is

         11  there.  I hope that it is.  But, if not, we will

         12  address that through the Budget negotiations process

         13  hopefully.

         14                 MS. MENNIN: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

         16  Madam Chair.

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Speaking from

         18  the audience, off mic.)

         19                 MR. DAVIES: No, not unless you serve

         20  on some State committee or commission, such as

         21  Council Member Jackson does.  We don't seem to have

         22  a lot but there are some elected in the City that,

         23  and some not elected in the City, the Controller,

         24  but the Controller is elected, but a few others,

         25  Director of Budget I think serves on some State
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          2  functions, the Deputy Mayor, serves on some State

          3  entities.  So there are a handful.  Unless you serve

          4  on some State entities specifically, you are not

          5  required to file with the State merely because you

          6  are an elected official in the City of New York.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: So, as a New

          8  York City elected official, and when you say serve

          9  in another capacity on the State level, where could

         10  my colleagues find out, what does that mean, on the

         11  State level and is it with or without compensation?

         12                 MR. DAVIES: It doesn't matter whether

         13  compensation or not.  However, if you are required

         14  by the State Ethics Commission to file, you will be

         15  notified.  Guaranteed.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: But not by you.

         17                 MR. DAVIES: Not by us, but by the

         18  State Ethics Commission.  Council Member Jackson,

         19  I'm sorry, you received I assume some notification.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes, I

         21  received notice that I must file by the 15th.

         22                 MR. DAVIES: So, you will know from

         23  the State Ethics Commission if you are required to

         24  file with the State.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: All right.  And

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND ETHICS

          2  now do you take the responsibility for notifying a

          3  filer who currently is responsible for filing with

          4  the COIB on the City Law.  The answer is no, you do

          5  not have responsibility.  Under City Law.

          6                 MS. MENNIN: Under City Law, the COIB

          7  is responsible for notifying the City filers who

          8  must file the COIB form.  Yes. And we do that

          9  generally through an agency liaison.  We distribute

         10  materials to them and they will distribute them

         11  individually to their required filers within the

         12  City Council or the agency.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thank you.  Are

         14  there any other questions?  Council Member Sears.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.  I

         16  just wanted to make a comment.  The Conflicts of

         17  Interest Board and under the leadership there, has

         18  been probably one of the most cooperative agency

         19  that you could have to work with this Committee.

         20  They over the time have done a mammoth job with

         21  incredibly so little staff that it is and I might

         22  add that they have to do this by Charter. One of the

         23  things that always bothered me was they are demanded

         24  by Charter to do their training and yet it didn't

         25  seem, with all due respect, to be a big issue with
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          2  the Administration, because they always look to the

          3  Council to restore the money that they are required

          4  by Charter to do, which is the training for all the

          5  agencies.  So I think we need to look at that in

          6  this dance of the Budget.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DICKENS: Thank you so

          8  much.  We are looking into that, based upon prior

          9  testimony from Mr. Davies on exactly that, the

         10  training.  So that has not been forgotten by the

         11  City Council.

         12                 Are there any other testimonies?  If

         13  so, I just want to remind you to please complete

         14  your form and file it with my Sergeant- at- Arms.

         15  Seeing that there are no other questions or

         16  testimony, I declare that this Hearing is adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 2:35 p.m.)
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